
Agenda  
Linwood Community Library Board Meeting 

September 26, 2023 at 7:00 pm  
Public Notice  

Lisa Turney (Chair) Lea Chrisman  Robert Firth 
Stacey Schmitt   Sheldon Wheaton 

Call to Order 
Introduction of Guests, if present 

Changes or additions to the agenda, if needed 

  Consent Agenda 
  All matters on the consent agenda are considered within one motion and will be enacted by one 
motion. There will be no separate discussion on these items.  

● Previous Meeting Minutes

● Treasurer’s Report

● Communications for the Board

Director’s Report – 

• Financial reports
• Statistical report

Old Business 

● Health Insurance
● Proposed Updates to Challenged Materials Policy

Committee Reports 

● Building & Equipment
● Financial
● Personnel and Policies

New Business 

● Bills for Payment
● Updates to Request for Reconsideration Form
● Animal Policy
● Post- Thanksgiving Closures

Public Comments – Please state name and address. 2- minute time limit 
Executive Session -) Adjournment  
Next Regular Board Meeting: Tuesday, October 24, 2023 at 7:00 pm  



Page 1 of 2 
 

Linwood Community Library Board Budget Meeting: August 22, 2023  
 
Call to Order  
 
Board Members present: Lisa Turney, Robert Firth, Stacey Schmitt, Sheldon 
Wheaton, Lea Chrisman 

Staff Members present: Dalton Torneden 

Guests: Lynn Shoemaker, Stefanie Brown 

The meeting was called to order at: 7:06 P.M. by Lisa Turney 
 

● Notice of Budget Hearing 
Notice was published in Lawrence Journal World on August 12, 2023 
 

● Proposed Budget for 2024 
Proposed Budget did not exceed Revenue Neutral Rate  
Proposed 2024 Revenue Neutral Rate is 2.784 
Proposed 2024 Budget Mill Levy will be 2.632, the 2023 mill levy was 3.063. 
 
Bob made a motion to accept the 2024 Proposed Budget as presented. 
Stacey seconded the motion. Motion carried 5-0 
 
Approval: As there is a voting majority in favor of the motion to approve the 
2024 Budget for the Linwood Community Library District #1, the motion is 
carried, 5-0. (With 2 board member vacancies) 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
  Robert Firth  Yes 
  Stacey Schmitt Yes 
  Lea Chrisman Yes 
  Sheldon Wheaton Yes 
  Lisa Turney  Yes 

Public Comments  
None 

Adjournment  
Bob made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:28 p.m. Stacey seconded. Motion 
carried 5/0. 

Submitted by: Lea Chrisman; Board Secretary 
 

Linwood Community Library Board  Linwood Community Library Staff 

Lisa Turney; Chair   (03/2026) Open Position; Director 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Sheldon Wheaton; Vice-Chair (03/2027) Dalton Torneden, Assistant Director 

Robert Firth; Treasurer  (03/2025) Jayne Hopkins; Youth Services 

Stacey Schmitt; Vice-Treasurer (03/2024) Dennis Shelton; Teen and Marketing 

Lea Chrisman; Secretary  (03/2026) Teresa Reetz, Adult Programing/Collection 

Open Position    (03/2027) Joyce Elder, Bookkeeper 

Open Position    (03/2025) Amy Rosewicz; Programming Assistant 
    

Linwood Community Library Board Committees  

Building & Equipment:     Robert Firth   

Personnel & Policy:    Stacey Schmitt           Sheldon Wheaton Lisa Turney 

Finance:   Lea Chrisman  Stacey Schmitt Robert Firth 
 

Officer and Committee appointments updated July 25, 2023 
 

 

_____________________________________________ 

Lisa Turney, Chairperson   Date: 

_____________________________________________        

Lea Chrisman, Secretary    Date: 



Page 1 of 4 
 

Linwood Community Library Board Meeting: August 22, 2023  
 
Call to Order  
 
Board Members present: Lisa Turney, Robert Firth, Stacey Schmitt, Sheldon 
Wheaton, Lea Chrisman 

Staff Members present: Dalton Torneden 

Guests: Lynn Shoemaker, Stefanie Brown 

The meeting was called to order at: 7:29 P.M. by Lisa Turney 

Consent Agenda All matters on the consent agenda are considered within one motion and will be 
enacted by one motion. If an item needs to be discussed, it will be removed from the consent agenda 
and considered separately.  
Minutes of last month’s meeting: July 25, 2023 Minutes were reviewed by the Board.  
Treasurer’s Report:  
 General Fund Checking: As of 07.31.2023 Account Balance was $368,447.17. 
 The GF Checking has been proved to QuickBooks noting no difference. 
 Capital Improvement Fund: As of 07.31.2023 Account Balance was $152,189.51.  
 The CIF Checking has been proven to QuickBooks noting no difference. 
 Petty Cash Fund: Counted by Amy on 08.21.2023. 
 She stated the balance was $71.45. 
Communications: There were no communications received and reviewed by the Board.   

Approval: Bob moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Stacey seconded. Motion carried 
5/0. 
 
Director’s Report  
The Summer Reading Program Ended with a pizza party on July 29.  
The One Book Many Neighbors End of Program Party was held at Kane Farm on July 30. 
The library had an author visit. 
Upcoming NEKLS Training Sessions. 
Library to sell mums from Free State Growers on August 28 and September 11. 

● Financial reports: Reviewed by the Board. 
● Statistical report: Reviewed and discussed by the Board. 

 
Old Business  
 

● Health Insurance – QSEHRA Information.  
Take Command was contacted and information was presented. 
The Board felt it was in the best interests of the library to take no action to start this 
program. The Board may consider continued Health Care Stipends at a later date. 

Committee Reports  

Building & Equipment: Bob spoke about the stained ceiling tile in the lobby. He has 
contacted a roofer to look into the situation to see if they can find the source. The HVAC 



Page 2 of 4 
 

could also be the cause of the issue. Once resolved, the ceiling tile will be replaced. 
Finance: Worked to seek a resolution on the credit card charge account. 
Personnel & Policy: Reviewed and reposted the job description for the vacant Director’s 
Position.  

Action Items:  

New Business  

● Charge Card Limits Bob and Dalton did an analysis for the last (4) months of credit 
card charges.  Bob made recommendations that the master credit card account limit 
be raised and current limits for each card be adjusted, followed by discussion. 
Bob made a motion to increase the Visa Credit Card account to $10,000.00  
Lisa seconded.  Motion carried 5/0. 
Bob made a motion to set individual limits for each card as follows: 
  Dalton  $2,000.00 
  Dennis $1,500.00 
  Teresa  $3,500.00 
Stacey seconded the motion. Motion carried 5/0. 

● Proposed Update to Confidentiality of Library Records Policy 
Dalton presented the proposed changes. Lisa made a motion to accept the proposed 
changes to the “Confidentiality of Library Records Policy”.  Stacey seconded. Motion  
carried 5/0. 

● Proposed Updated to the Library Cards Policy 
Dalton presented the proposed changes. Stacey made a motion to accept the 
updated changes to the “Library Cards Policy''. Bob seconded.  Motion carried 5/0. 

● Proposed Updates to Records Retention Policy 
Dalton presented the proposed changes. Bob made a motion to approve the updated 
“Records Retention Policy” as presented. Lisa seconded the motion. 
Motion carried 5/0. 

● Proposed Updates to Challenged Materials Policy 
Dalton presented the proposed changes. After discussion, the Board requested that 
Dalton make some proposed changes.  Board will revisit it at the next meeting. 

● Assistant Director Job Description  
Bob made a motion to approve the Assistant Director’s Job Description subject to 
suggested changes.  Sheldon seconded.  Motion carried 5/0. 

● Added: Proposed Update to Meeting Space Use Policy  
Dalton presented the proposed changes. Bob made a motion to accept the 
amendments to the “Meeting Space Use Policy”.  Stacey seconded.  Motion carried 
5/0. 

● Bills For Payment  
Bob made a motion to approve bills for payment as presented.  Lisa seconded. 
Motion carried 5/0. 

Public Comments  
None 

 

Executive Session 



Page 3 of 4 
 

Bob made a motion to enter Executive Session for 20 minutes at 8:12 P.M. Stacey seconded.  
Motion carried 5/0. 
Bob made a motion to exit the Executive Session at 8:31 P.M. Lisa seconded. Motion carried 
5/0. 
 
Dalton exited the meeting. 
 
Bob made a motion to enter the Executive session for 60 minutes at 8:35 pm.  Stacey 
seconded. Motion carried 5/0. 
Lea made a motion to exit the Executive Session at 9:30 P.M. Bob seconded. Motion carried 
5/0. 
 

Adjournment  
Approval: Lea moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:31 P.M. Stacey seconded.  Motion carried 
5/0.  

Next Meeting  
The next regular Board meeting will be Tuesday, September 26, 2023 at 7:00 P.M.  

Submitted by: Lea Chrisman; Board Secretary 
 

Linwood Community Library Board  Linwood Community Library Staff 

Lisa Turney; Chair   (03/2026) Open Position; Director 

Sheldon Wheaton; Vice-Chair (03/2027) Dalton Torneden, Assistant Director 

Robert Firth; Treasurer  (03/2025) Jayne Hopkins; Youth Services 

Stacey Schmitt; Vice-Treasurer (03/2024) Dennis Shelton; Teen and Marketing 

Lea Chrisman; Secretary  (03/2026) Teresa Reetz, Adult Programing/Collection 

Open Position    (03/2027) Joyce Elder, Bookkeeper 

Open Position    (03/2025) Amy Rosewicz; Programming Assistant 
    

Linwood Community Library Board Committees  

Building & Equipment:     Robert Firth   

Personnel & Policy:    Stacey Schmitt           Sheldon Wheaton Lisa Turney 

Finance:   Lea Chrisman  Stacey Schmitt Robert Firth 
 

Officer and Committee appointments updated July 25, 2023 
 



Page 4 of 4 
 

 

 

_____________________________________________ 

Lisa Turney, Chairperson   Date: 

_____________________________________________        

Lea Chrisman, Secretary    Date: 







Page 1 of 2 
 

Linwood Community Library  2023 

 
Director’s Report  

Submitted by Dalton Torneden 
September 26th, 2023 

Hello Board Members!  
 

I am pleased to report the new Meraki network hardware has been installed, 
there were some initial hiccups with back door keyless access and the library’s 
copier/printer. Greg Gantz with NEKLS came out and resolved those issues and our 
network is working successfully.  
 

We received our first shipment of Mums from Free State Growers as of August 
28th and have received our second shipment as of September 15th. We are charging 
$10 per plant. Stop in and grab a Mum while supplies last! You may have noticed the 
Mums planted around the library. Teresa and her husband, Steve were kind enough to   
plant them for the library. Thank you to both of them for helping to brighten up the 
library!  
 

August 4th was the last First Friday concert, the City Union Mission Band 
performed. Our food truck having cancelled at the last minute, the Baptist Church 
assisted us in preparing hot dogs and hamburgers for our concert goers. A big thank 
you goes out to Howie Lucas and the Baptist Church for their efforts!  
 

On November 1st, Kanopy, which is a digital video streaming app offered to 
patrons, will be changing its play credit system. Instead of play credits, users will have a 
monthly ticket allotment. Each ticket represents $1 in cost to the library. Every title is 
labeled with a ticket value and viewing window. There will be more flexible content 
pricing, including reducing the cost of some content to $1/1 ticket. The Great Courses 
will also be included in the ticket system. Kanopy reports that this change will provide  



Page 2 of 2 
 

Linwood Community Library  2023 

clearer insight into the maximum cost per patron each month and better 
represent the library’s costs. It should also provide clearer information and ease of 
access for patrons to know how many tickets they have. Our pay credit number would 
change from 6 play credits per user per month to 18 tickets per user per month.  

 
A big thank you to Sheldon! He leveled the ground under our HVAC Fence Gate 

and adjusted the security bar and latch for smooth access. Thanks to Dennis also for 
installing a new latch! 

 
Some of you may have noticed the pothole forming as you enter the library’s 

parking lot, I have spoken with KDOT and they are going to try spraying it before 
possibly applying asphalt to the pothole.  

 
Blue Duck Plumbing came out to the library on August 30th, the flush valve on the 

urinal in the Men’s room was repaired and the tailpiece on the right side of kitchen sink 
was replaced.  

 
Mid West Exterminators were at the library on September 13th and performed 

routine pest control, spraying the library and placing new glue traps in the building. 
 
We look forward to our upcoming events: 
 
September 28th, Guitarist Megan Luttrell performs @ 6:30. 
 
September 30th, Friends of the Library will be having a book sale @ the 

community building – 4 – 7 PM. While you are there grab some BBQ from the Lion’s 
Club! 

 
October 7th, Fall Festival – the library is partnering with the City and Baptist 

Church to host this year’s Fall Festival, the library will have a pumpkin painting activity 
for the kids. I will be taking a laptop and library cards in order to sign up potential 
patrons and other informational items to hand out to attendees. 

 
October 12th, Bill Nicks will be at the library to bring James Naismith alive to our 

audience just in time for the start of the KU Men’s Basketball season!  
 

That’s all for this month, thanks to all that make the library great!    





Statistical Analysis for the Month of August 2023 

 
 Circulation, checkouts for adult books held steady at a total of 192 checkouts for the month, 
our top adult book checkout categories were Fiction, Non-Fiction and Mystery. August’s total 
Children’s Checkouts were a total of 369 items from July’s 735, the drop can be attached 
specifically to checkouts of picture books. My belief is that this drop can be attributed to the 
conclusion of Summer Reading and the start of the school year. Movie/videogame check out 
numbers stayed the same as the previous month at a total of 175 items.  The categories most 
often checked out were DVD’s (Adult) and Children’s Nintendo Switch games. 

New Acquisitions, August saw the library at its highest monthly acquisition point for the year at 
the acquisition of 169 new items for the month.  

Programs, Adult program attendance remains steady. Our last First Friday concert saw 92 
people attending to see the City Union Mission Band perform on Main Street. We are seeing 
another drop in Children’s program attendance. 55 participants in 11 programs vs. last month’s 
12 programs with 126 in attendance.  

Electronic Materials Use, there was a drop-in usage of Overdrive eBooks, 30 items from last 
month’s 84 items.  There are no Flipster stats this month.  Statistics for Lynda (LinkedIn 
Learning) will no longer be collected. This was a service provided by NEKLS and they have  
discontinued this service due to a lack of usage. LinkedIn learning offered courses in business, 
creativity, and technology.  

Miscellaneous, there was a drop in the total door count from last month, 207 people came 
through the library doors in August from July’s 323.  Website sessions were up at 515 sessions 
from last month’s 387 sessions.  

 

 





Current Policy 
Challenged Materials 

A. Precepts of Freedom 
The Linwood Community Library adheres to and wholly supports the Library Bill of 
Rights and Freedom to Read statements.  

The Board of Trustees has also adopted the following American Library Association 
statements: 

 Statement on Labeling 
 Diversity in Collection 
Challenged Materials 
Expurgation of Library 
Materials 
Free Access to Libraries 
for Minors 

 
B. Process for the Reconsideration of Library Materials 

1. The Director handles all challenges of materials. An appointment may be 
set up for the complainant to meet with the Director in person or by 
telephone. 

2. If the meeting is in person, a private area should be chosen. The Director 
and another staff or board member will listen calmly and courteously. The 
individual or group must be treated with dignity. 

3. The Director will explain the general criteria of the library's selection policy 
to the complainant. It should be made clear that the Library Board of 
Trustees subscribes to the Freedom Statements in this policy.  

4. If the complainant wants to continue the procedure for reconsideration of 
materials after the meeting, the complainant will be requested to complete 
the form "Reconsideration of Library Materials". The complainant must be 
properly identified and the form must be filled out in its entirety.  

5. Upon receiving the completed form, the Director will appoint a 3 member 
committee consisting of the Director or his/her designee from the staff, a 
board member, and a library user from the community. The committee will 
consider available professional reviews of the material as part of the 
reconsideration process. 

6. Within 60 days after receiving the completed form, written notification of 
the decision of the committee will be given to the complainant. 

7. If the complainant is not satisfied with the committee decision, an appeal 
may be made to the Board of Trustees within 30 days of the committee 
decision. 

8. If the decision is appealed to the Board, the material in question and all 
supporting information concerning the decision of the committee will be 
considered by the Board. The Board's decision will be final. 

Approved by Library Board: December 23, 2008 



 
 

Proposed Changes to Policy 
 
Challenged Materials 

A. Precepts of Freedom 
The Linwood Community Library adheres to and wholly supports the Library Bill of 
Rights and Freedom to Read statements.  

The Board of Trustees has also adopted the following American Library Association 
statements: 

 Statement on Labeling 
 Diversity in Collection 
Challenged Materials 
Expurgation of Library 
Materials 
Free Access to Libraries 
for Minors 

 
B. Process for the Reconsideration of Library Materials 

l . The Director handles all challenges of materials. An appointment may be 
set up for the complainant to meet with the Director in person or by 
telephone. 

2. If the meeting is in person, a private area should be chosen. The Director 
and another staff or board member will listen calmly and courteously. The 
individual or group must be treated with dignity. 

3. The Director will explain the general criteria of the library's selection 
policy to the complainant. It should be made clear that the Library Board 
of Trustees subscribes to the Freedom Statements in this policy.  

4. If the complainant wants to continue the procedure for reconsideration of 
materials after the meeting, the complainant will be requested to complete 
the form "Reconsideration of Library Materials". The complainant must 
be a properly identified library card holder and the form must be filled out 
in its entirety.  

5. Upon receiving the completed form, the Director will appoint a 3- 
member committee consisting of the Director or his/her designee from the 
staff, a board member, and a library user from the community. The 
committee will consider available professional reviews of the material as 
part of the reconsideration process. 

6. Within 60 days after receiving the completed form, written notification of 
the decision of the committee will be given to the complainant. 
 



7. If the complainant is not satisfied with the committee decision, an appeal 
may be made to the Board of Trustees within 30 days of the committee 
decision. 

8. If the decision is appealed to the Board, the material in question and all 
supporting information concerning the decision of the committee will be 
considered by the Board. The Board's decision will be final. 

Approved by Library Board: December 23, 2008, Revised, September 26,2023 
 



 
63 

    



Page 1 of 2 
 

Request for Reconsideration of Library  Material  
  
The trustees of the Linwood Community Library have established a materials selection policy and a procedure 
for gathering input about particular items. Completion of this form is the first step in that procedure. If you 
wish to request reconsideration of a resource, please return the completed form to the library director.    
  
Linwood Community Library, 19649 Linwood Road, PO Box 80, Linwood, Kansas. 66052. 
  

Date  

Name   

Address   

City                                                            State/Zip  

Phone                                                        Email  

  
Do you represent yourself? ____ Or an organization? ____  
Name of Organization ___________________________  
 
Are you an active library cardholder?  Yes No 
  
1. Resource on which you are commenting:  

  

 ___ Book (e-book)  ___ Magazine  ___ Digital Resource  ___ Newspaper   
 ___ Movie  ___ Audio Recording  ___ Game  ___ Other 
  
Title __________________________________________________________________________________  
  

Author/Producer ________________________________________________________________________  
  
2. What brought this resource to your attention?  
  

 
  

 

 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

3. Have you examined the entire resource? If not, what sections did you review?  
  

 
 

 

4. What concerns you about the resource?  
  

 
  

 

5. Are there resource(s) you suggest to provide additional information and/or other viewpoints on this topic?  
  

 
  

 

6. What action are you requesting the committee consider?  
  

 
  

 
  
 Signature of Individual Requesting Reconsideration: ________________________________________ 

 
Revised: 2023/09 

















 
Intellectual Freedom 
The Linwood Community Library Board of Directors endorses the Library Bill of 
Rights, Freedom to Read statement, and Freedom to View statement of the 
American Library Association and the Intellectual Freedom statement of the 
Kansas Library Association. 



Current Policy  
 
Animals in the Library 
The only animals allowed in the library are service animals. Exceptions may be approved by the 
Director, such as animals in the library for a featured library program or event.      
 

Proposed Update to Policy  
 
Animals in The Library Policy  
The Linwood Community Library strives to provide a safe and welcome environment for 
everyone. Therefore, in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), 
service animals are allowed to accompany their handlers anywhere individuals with 
disabilities are allowed to enter. Service animals are defined under the Americans with 
Disabilities Act as being trained to do work or perform tasks for the benefit of a person 
with a disability. Pets, therapy dogs, and emotional support animals are not considered 
service animals under the ADA. 
Only service animals or animals used in a program or event are allowed in the 
library. Service animals are only dogs and miniature horses (see below) that have been 
individually trained to take a specific action when needed to assist a person with a 
disability to do work or perform tasks, including trained psychiatric dogs. Therefore, any 
other type of animal is not allowed in the Library.  
The task(s) performed by the dog or a miniature horse must be directly related to a 
person’s disability. 

● Pets, therapy animals, and comfort animals are not classified as service 
animals by the ADA and are not allowed in the Library unless specified for 
a program or event. 

● Animals in carriers are not allowed in the Library. 
● Animals in bags or purses are not allowed in the Library. 
● Service animals must be in physical proximity with their handler and under 

handler control at all times. 
● Service animals may not be left unattended by their handler at any time. 
● Service animals must be on a leash or harness at all times unless the use 

of a leash or harness interferes with the animal's effective performance of 
its designated task(s). If the animal cannot be leashed or harnessed, it 
must be under the handler's control via voice, signals, or other effective 
means at all times. 

● Service animals must not display disruptive behavior such as barking and 
growling. 

● Service animals must be housebroken and their handler is responsible for 
any upkeep or clean-up of the animal. 



If a service animal's behaviors or actions pose an unreasonable or direct threat to the 
health or safety of others, or do not conform to these guidelines, they may not remain 
in the Library facility. In accordance with ADA guidelines, non-compliance of 
guidelines can be grounds for a request by library staff to remove a service animal from 
the Library facility. If the service animal is excluded from the Library facility, the 
individual with the disability is welcome to stay and will be reasonably accommodated 
by Library staff. 
  
Miniature Horses 
In addition to the provisions about service dogs, the Department’s ADA regulations have 
a separate provision about miniature horses that have been individually trained to do 
work or perform tasks for people with disabilities. (Miniature horses generally range in 
height from 24 inches to 34 inches measured to the shoulders and generally weigh 
between 70 and 100 pounds.) The same policies listed above apply for miniature 
horses. 
  

How does one know whether or not an animal is a service animal? 
The U.S. Department of Justice Civil Rights Division states:   
Service animals are defined as dogs or miniature horses that are individually 
trained to do work or perform tasks for people with disabilities. Examples of such 
work or tasks include guiding people who are blind, alerting people who are deaf, pulling 
a wheelchair, alerting and protecting a person who is having a seizure, reminding a 
person with mental illness to take prescribed medications, calming a person with Post 
Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD) during an anxiety attack, or performing other duties. 
Service animals are working animals, not pets. The work or task a dog has been trained 
to provide must be directly related to the person’s disability. Dogs whose sole function is 
to provide comfort or emotional support do not qualify as service animals under the 
ADA. (Retrieved August 1, 2023, from  
 
When it is not obvious what service an animal provides, only limited inquiries are 
allowed. Staff may ask two questions: (1) is the dog a service animal required 
because of a disability, and (2) what work or task has the dog been trained to 
perform. Staff cannot ask about the person’s disability, require medical 
documentation, require a special identification card or training documentation for 
the dog, or ask that the dog demonstrate its ability to perform the work or task. 

Allergies or fear of dogs are not valid reasons for denying access or refusing service to 
people using service animals. When a person who is allergic to dog dander and a 
person who uses a service animal must spend time in the same room or facility, for 
example, in a school classroom or at a homeless shelter, they both should be 



accommodated by assigning them, if possible, to different locations within the room or 
different rooms in the facility. 

Staff are not required to provide care for or supervision of a service animal. 

https://www.ada.gov/resources/service-animals-2010-requirements/) 
 
Revised, September 26,2023 
 

https://www.ada.gov/resources/service-animals-2010-requirements/

	Board Meeting Agenda 20230926
	08.22.23 Linwood Community Library Board BUDGET Meeting
	08.22.23 Linwood Community Library Board Meeting
	Director's Report 20230926
	Linwood Community Library  2023
	Linwood Community Library  2023

	Statistical Report 20230926
	Statistical Analysis 20230926
	Challenged Materials 20230926
	Current Request for Reconsideration Form 20230912
	Updated Request for Reconsideration of Material Form 20230908
	ALA-KLA Statements 20230908
	Library Policy Manual Intellectual Freedom Statement 20230912
	Animal Policy 20230926



